
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        MARCH 19, 2012 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / March 5, 2012 

                                                   Council Work Session Minutes / March 12, 2012 

 

PRESENTATION:    Present a Copy of the  book  Images of America: “Daphne” to the City / Ms. Harriet Outlaw &  

                                     Ms. Penny Taylor 

                                               

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

          Review Finance Minutes / March 12
th
  

1.) Ordinances: 

a.) Appropriation of Funds: City Hall Roof Repair / Preparation of Plans/Specifications /  

 Ordinance 2012-22 
b.) Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Kitchen Hood Suppression System / Ordinance 2012-23 

c.) Appropriation of Funds: Legislative Phone/Internet Budget / Ordinance 2012-24 

d.) Appropriation of Funds: Recreation / Youth Spring Soccer Program / Ordinance 2012-25 

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a.) Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements / Resolution 2012-21 

b.) Sales Tax Holiday / Resolution 2012-22 

c.) Bid Award: Asphalt Hotbox Reclaimer Trailer Unit / Truck & Equipment Sales, Inc. /  

   Resolution 2012-23 
d.) Bid Award: PW/Truck: 8-10 Yard Dump Truck / Empire Truck Sales, LLC / Resolution 2012-24 

e.) Bid Award: PW/Roller Compactor – Tow Behind / Thompson Tractor Co. / Resolution 2012-25 

f.) Declare Property Surplus for Donation / Resolution 2012-26 

g.) Declare Property Surplus / Resolution 2012-27 

 

3.) MOTIONS: 
Motion to go out to bid:  City Hall Roof Repair 

 

4.)  Financial Reports: 

a.)  Treasurers Report / February, 2012 

b.)   Sales & Use Tax Collections / January 2012 

c.)   Lodging Tax Collections / 2012  

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake   

          Review minutes / March 5
th
    

              

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware                   

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

           Review minutes / March 14
th
  

 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

           

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette                     

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway      
 

1



COUNCIL AGENDA                                    MARCH 19, 2012                                          PAGE   2 

         

   

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

          Review minutes / January 6
th
  

          Review minutes / February 2
nd

  

 

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette   

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott             

           Review minutes / January 25
th
  

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
           a.)   Parade Permit / Daphne United Methodist Church / April 7, 2012 

           b.)   MOTION:  Voting Delegate / AL League of Municipalities Convention / May 19-11, 2012   

           c.)   MOTION:  Authorize going out for bid on road projects 

 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:              

 

       

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Hazardous Mitigation Grant / Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements. . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-21 

 

b.)   Sales Tax Holiday. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-22  

 

c.)    Bid Award: Asphalt Hotbox Reclaimer Trailer Unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-23 

 

d.)    Bid Award: PW/Truck: 8-10 Yard Dump Truck. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-24 

 

e.)    Bid Award: PW/Roller Compactor / Tow Behind. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-25 

 

f.)     Declaring Certain Property Surplus / Donation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-26 

 

g.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-27 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

         2
nd

  READ 
a.)    Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

       Revisions to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-19 

 

b.)   Annexation: Woodrow Lane Right-of-Way. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-20 

 

 

 

 

 2



 

COUNCIL AGENDA                                MARCH 19, 2012                                          PAGE   3 

 

 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ 
 

c.)   Adopting the Rules of Procedure in All Instances for Meetings of the  

       City Council. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-21 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: City Hall Roof Repair. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-22 

 

e.)  Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System. . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-23 

 

f.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Legislative Phone/Internet Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-24 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds: Youth Spring Soccer Program. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-25 

 

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

4



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

5



MARCH 5, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Erick Bussey, Attorney; Adrienne Jones, 

Planning Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Christine 

Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director Richard Merchant, Building 

Official; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Bob 

Segalla, Utility Board. 

 

Absent: Kim Briley, Finance Director; Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the February 20, 2012 Council meeting minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR                NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

1.)  Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / Revisions to Zoning Map / 

      Ordinance 2012-19 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones gave the presentation 

 

Council President Barnette opened the Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the proposed revisions. 

 

Council President Barnette closed the Public Hearing at 6:41 p.m.  

 

 

2.)  Annexation of Woodrow Lane Right-of-Way 

       Property Located:         AL Highway 181 to the unimproved portion of Woodrow Lane 

       Recommendation:         Unanimous Favorable 

       Ordinance 2012-20 

6



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

Mrs. Jones gave the presentation. 

 

Council President Barnette opened the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

 

Mr. David Chalk – 8719 Ash Court – representing TimberCreek Property Owners Association - 

spoke in favor of the proposed annexation. 

 

Mr. Chester McConnell -   Pine Run – spoke in favor of the proposed annexation. 

 

Mr. Joe Davis – 30757 Pine Court – spoke in favor of the proposed annexation. 

 

Council President Barnette closed the Public Hearing at 6:46 p.m. 

 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to authorize going out for bid: Daphne Sports “Complex, 

Phase I.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

No report.   

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be the 2
nd

 Wednesday of March. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be the 2
nd

 Wednesday of March. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

No report. 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No meeting in March. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The minutes for the February 27
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 
7



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 
 The February 7

th
 and February 27

th
 minutes are in the packet.  The board met on February 7

th
 with a 

call center that was requesting assistance, and at that time they were not able to make a decision. On 

February 27
th

 a motion was made to offer Fortitude Business Solutions to pay six (6) months rent 

@$1,500 per month beginning March 1, 2012 with a follow-up meeting prior to the end of the six (6) 

months to discuss possible further assistance.   

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

No report.   

 

E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to Set a Public Hearing date for April 2, 2012 to consider 

rezoning: 

 

Blacksher White-Spunner, etal 

Location:                     Southwest of the intersection of U.S. Highway 90 and County Road 

13Present Zoning:      R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District  

Proposed Zoning:       B-1, Local Business 

Recommendation:       Failed to set forth a favorable recommendation / A super majority vote is    

                                      needed for  a favorable recommendation, and the vote was five (5)  

                                      affirmative  - one (1) dissenting   

 

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The next meeting will be the last Wednesday of the month.  The board has resurfaced Well Road all 

the Way to Public Works Road, and Public Works Road all the way to Austin Park has been 

resurfaced as well.  There is a proposal that the board will discuss at a later time of extending Well 

Road all the way to County Road 13.  This will help school traffic, as well as, the Recreation ball 

fields giving traffic another exit instead of all exiting on Whispering Pines Road.  This is an example 

of the Utility Board and the city working together for a positive result. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
8



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 
 a.)   ABC License / Benedetto / 040 – Retail Beer (On or Off Premises / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off  

        Premises   

  b.)   ABC License / Bayside Academy / 140 Special Events Retail  

  c.)   ABC License / Southern Napa / 040 – Retail Beer (On or Off Premises / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or         

        Off Premises    

  d.)  ABC License / Pour Nelsons Pub / 010 – Lounge Retail Liquor – Class I    

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the ABC License for Benedetto / 040 – Retail Beer 

(On or Off Premises / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off  Premises.  Seconded by Councilman 

Palumbo. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette               ABSTAIN    Scott 

 

                        NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the ABC License / Bayside Academy / 140 

Special Events Retail.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the ABC License / Southern Napa / 040 – Retail 

Beer (On or Off Premises / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises. Seconded by 

Councilman Palumbo.    

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the ABC License / Pour Nelsons Pub / 010 – Lounge 

Retail Liquor – Class I.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo.    

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

No report.   

 

 

 

 

 
9



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

 

C. Department Head Comments: 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that the Search and Rescue Squad have been involved with the 

recovery efforts for the missing Coast Guard crewman from the beginning and will continue until the 

search is suspended. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported the girl’s softball and kickball, Dixie Boys 

baseball, lacrosse, soccer schedules.  He also reported the tournament schedules.  The Daphne Easter 

Egg Hunt will be March 31
st
 starting at noon at Lott Park. He announced that the Sunday Sunset Series 

Concerts at Bay Front Park from 5:00 – 6:30 p.m. starts March 18
th

 with City Rhythm,  April 22
nd

 with 

Baldwin Pops and May 20
th

 with Mobile Big Band. The next Recreation Board meeting will be 

Wednesday March 14
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  reported that voting at the Civic Center will be Tuesday 

March 13
th

, Civic Center Open House is March 15
th

 5:30 – 7:30 p.m., Ballroom Dance tickets go on 

sale March 20
th

, and the event is April 20
th

 and Mobile Bottle Collectors will be at the Civic Center 

March 23-24, and is open to the public. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief -  reported that the roof repairs on the Justice Center were finished, 

and so far there have been no leaks.  There are still some minor repairs that need to be addressed 

before final payment is made. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director -  reported that there was a great turnout for all the Lincoln speaking 

events, and that patron comments indicated that the entire program had been an asset to the 

community. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – reported that there is a Library Aid position open. 

 

Christine Ciancetta – Deputy Finance Director -  gave an update on accepting credit cards. 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Doug Dugat 9391 Montpelier Place – thanked Council for approving the refinancing of the 

warrants.  He feels this is a positive action to help develop the Recreation property behind Wal-Mart.  

He mentioned that the Daphne Bocce players will be set up at the Special Olympics in Fairhope on 

March 16h for any of the entrants that want to learn to play.  

 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)    Acceptance of Streets / Brookhaven Subdivision, Unit Two, Part A . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-15 

 

10



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

 

b.)   Authorize the Mayor to Execute a Warrant Purchase Agreement 

        Between the City and Gardnyr Michael Capital with Respect to the 

        Series 2012 Warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-16  

 

c.)    Set Public Hearing for Codification of Ordinances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  /Resolution 2012-17 

 

d.)    Prepaid Travel / Lake / Cohen / Conaway  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-18 

 

e.)    Authorize to Apply for the AL Transportation & Improvement  

        Program Grant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-19 

 

f.)     Authorize Sending out RFP’s to Banks & Bond Companies for the 

         Refinancing of the 2006 Series Warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-20 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-15, 2012-16, 

2012-17, 2012-18, 2012-19 and 2012-20.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-15.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR              NAY   NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt of Resolution 2012-16.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

Council discussed the resolution. 

 

Councilman Palumbo called for the question. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Scott, Barnette                                 NAY    Reese, Boulware, Palumbo  

 

                                                                MOTION CARRIED     

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-17.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

 

 
11



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-18.  Seconded by Councilman 

Palumbo. 

 

AYE    Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                    NAY    NONE OPPOSED    

                                          

                      ABSTAIN    Conaway, Lake                           MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-19.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY   NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2012-20.  Seconded by Councilman 

Palumbo. 

 

AYE    Reese, Boulware, Palumbo                                  NAY    Conaway, Lake, Scott, Barnette 

 

                                                             MOTION FAILED 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ 
 

a.)    Consenting to the Lease of Certain Property by the  

         Utilities Board of the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ./ Ordinance 2012-11 

 

b.)    Other Personnel Cost: Building Maintenance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-12 

 

c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Additional Audit/CPA Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-13 

 

d.)    Appropriation of Funds: Bonding / Deputy Finance Director . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-14 

 

e.)  Appropriation of Funds: Community Contribution BARC /  

        (Baldwin County Humane Society. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-15 

 

f.)   Appropriation of Funds: US 98 & Whispering Pines Road Intersection 

        Improvements (Turn Lanes & Signalization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-16 

 

g.)    Mandatory Sewer Hookup within the City of Daphne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-17 

 

h.)   Appropriation of Funds:  (4) Police Vehicle Replacements . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-18 
 

 

12



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

  

       1
ST

 READ 
i.)    Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

       Revisions to Zoning Map . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-19 

 

j.)   Annexation: Woodrow Lane Right-of-Way . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-20 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinances 2012-11, 2012-12,  

2012-13, 2012-14, 2012-15, 2012-16, 2012-17 and 2012-18.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED              
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-11.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                                                        

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-12  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-13.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-14.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-15.  Seconded by Councilman 

Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-16.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

13



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Ordinance 2012-17.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    Reese, Boulware, Palumbo                                     NAY    Conaway, Lake, Scott, Barnette 

 

                                                            MOTION FAILED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Ordinance 2012-18.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                         NAY    Lake 

 

                                                            MOTION CARRIED 
 

Ordinances 2012-19, 2012-20 were made 1
st
 Read. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding stated that the S.E.E.D.S Run was a great event for raising money for the schools.   

 

Councilwoman Conaway thanked council for the opportunity to go to the National League of Cities 

Conference.  She feels it will be beneficial. 

 

Councilman Lake stated that they voted back on August 15, 2011 to go out for refinancing with Gardnyr 

Michael Capital, because they looked at the city’s bonding to see where money could be saved, and brought 

to council.  If other bonding companies and banks want to look at the city’s bonding to see where money 

could be saved the council will listen.  He said he had some more to say on that when they voted on the 

resolution, but Mr. Palumbo called for the question 

 

Councilman Palumbo clarified that at the January 3
rd

 meeting when the question was called while he was 

speaking he made a point to mention that that had only happened once or twice in the eight years he has 

been on the council.  He warned certain council members at that time that it would come back and be 

revisited. 

 

Councilman Reese agreed with the mayor regarding the S.E.E.D.S. event.  He said it was a very delightful 

event. 

 

Councilman Scott said that the S.E.E.D.S. event promotes a great sense of community. 

 

Councilman Boulware stated that there was a great turnout for the S.E.E.D.S. event, and that it was for a 

good cause, and they are proud of the work they have done. 

 

 

 

14



MARCH 5, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

Council President Barnette stated that Mr. Lake was right when he said at the last council meeting that the 

council had been discussing the bond issue since August of last year.  It was a motion by Mr. Boulware to 

authorize the Finance Director to work with Gardnyr Michael Capital and Hand Arendall to structure the 

refunding and take steps necessary to refund the 2006 Limited Liability Revenue Warrants.  She said that 

they discussed it for a long time, and it has gotten convoluted for a variety of reasons, and hopefully, they 

can get back on track and create a process where there is no confusion in the future.  She said that they have 

talked about, maybe, working with a financial advisor so they can have a set protocol and procedure in place 

for the future.  Council President Barnette thanked Tracey Miller for her hard work on the application of the 

recycling grant. 

 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                         

                             
________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

15



MARCH 12, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

ABSENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Jason Crane, Attorney; Erick Bussey, Attorney. 

 

Absent: David Cohen, City Clerk. 

 

Council President Pro tem Boulware called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

1. OLDS EASEMENT / JAY ROSS 

Mr. Ross asked to postpone discussion, because they are not quite ready.  He reported that they will 

close on the Scott Curtis matter this week.  

 

2. AMENDING ORDINANCE 2009-21 / COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Council discussed suspension of the rules, and whether it is unanimous or 2/3 vote.  Council likes 

having two (2) reads on ordinances so as not to rush into anything. 

 

Consensus of Council was to delete Section XXII and change the wording to Section XVII to say 

that a unanimous vote is required to suspend the rules. 

 

Mr. Ross said that he would amend the ordinance and send it to Mrs. Hayes. 

 

 

 

3. AMENDING ORDINANCE 1993-16 / REGULATING THE USE OF ALCOHOLIC 

BEVERAGES WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Discussion of this ordinance came up due to a request from the Daphne Museum Board.  They want 

to have a reception and serve wine at the museum.  After review of the ordinance the City Attorney 

opinioned that they could not serve alcoholic beverages.  Council discussed the ordinance and 

mentioned that according to the ordinance people could not have alcoholic beverages at block 

parties, because the streets are city property.   

 

Consensus of council was to send the ordinance to the Ordinance Committee for review. 

 

 

4. CAPITAL BUDGET 

Mayor Yelding stated that he asked the Department Heads to send in their top three (3) capital 

budget priorities for this fiscal year.  They may have to cut a lot, but this is the current list. 

 

Christine presented the capital budget to council.  (Handout by Ms. Ciancetta is spread out upon 

these minutes) 

16



MARCH 12, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

 

Council discussed the list and asked questions. 

 

Council cannot make any decisions regarding the capital budget until they get the figures for what is 

in the reserves. 

 

5. ROAD PROJECTS 

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, presented information regarding the ATRIP grant.  If 

the city receives a grant it will be an 80/20 match.  There will be three (3) phases of the grant.  

Submission deadline for the first phase is the end of March 2012, the second phase deadline is the 

end of October 2012 and the deadline for the third phase if March 2012.   The roads to be submitted 

for each phase is presented in a handout by Mr. Johnson.  (Handout is spread out upon these 

minutes)   

 

 

6.  DISCUSS WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

Council did not have any other items to discuss. 

 

 

7.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Derek Boulware,     

      Council President Pro tem       

17



18



19



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

20



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

March 12, 2012 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:02 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, and Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson. 
 
Councilman Tommie Conaway was away at the NLC Conference.  Finance Director Kim Briley was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Bailey Yelding, Human Resources Benefits Coordinator, Sherree Hilburn, Public 
Works Director Richard Johnson, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director David McKelroy, 
Library Director Tonja Young, Revenue Officer Heather Gywnn, and Building Maintenance Supervisor Frank 
Barnett. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Sherree Hilburn presented the Human Resources activity update. Replacement positions filled in February 
include FT Firefighter (2) and PT Firefighter (3).  Open position includes PT Library Aide. 
 
The Safety Committee reported that new hard hats were issued with face shields and ear protection in the 
Street department, and the Administration staff in Public Works had “How to Use Fire Extinguisher” training.  
The Public works administrative assistant is reviewing location and dates for flagging certification training for 
mowing and grounds department. The next Safety Committee meeting will be March 28, 2012, at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Ms. Hilburn reported on the following HR department projects:  
 Organizing Work Room 
 Auditing Personnel Files 
 Employee Service Award Luncheon – March 21, 2012 
 Relay for Life Fundraiser – TV Raffle $1 ea or 6 for $5, Strawberry Sale in April 

Notice of Short Term Disability changes posted March 1 – May 1, 2012 – Reduction from 26 weeks to 
13 weeks - Discussed in November 2011 Finance Committee meeting. 
 

Mr. Scott asked about the change in Short Term Disability coverage.  Ms. Hilburn explained that the current 
coverage of 26 weeks is being reduced to 13 weeks.  She noted that over the last two years, less than 7% of 
employees have used Short Term Disability, with only four or five using the full 26 weeks. 
    
 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  February 29, 2012 

 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $20,976,966.01 was presented.  Ms. Henson noted that the Capital Reserve 
balance has decreased significantly due to ongoing road projects.  Ms. Henson stated that the $500,000 transfer 
approved in the Budget has been transferred from the General Fund to Capital Reserve for road projects.  Ms. 
Henson noted that reimbursement monies from ALDOT are pending on the US 98 & Hwy 64 grant project. 

21



Finance Minutes - 3-12.doc  2  

               . 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of February 29, 2012, in the 
amount of $20,976,966.01.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: January 31, 2012 
 
Ms. Henson reviewed the Sales Tax reports and noted that while the collections for January were under budget 
for the month the YTD collections were still over in the amount of $54,852.  Ms. Henson also referred to the 
Budget to Actual Comparison Graph and noted the lines were almost identical showing the collections were very 
close to Ms. Briley’s FY2012 budget projections: 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for January 2012    -   $809,785 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for January 2012    -   $834,336               
Under Budget (for January)                                  -   ($  24,551) 

 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $54,852  
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, January 2012  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $41,917 collected for January, 2012.  Discussion continued that while 
the collections were lower than last year it was noted that last years was most likely higher than usual due to the 
BP Oil Spill hotel personnel lodging. 
 
4.  Report: New Business Licenses – February 2012 
 
The list of new businesses (82), and businesses closed (2), in February was presented.   
 
5.  Bills Paid Reports – February 2012 
 
The February Bills Paid Report for FY 2012 was reviewed. 
 

B.  Appropriation Request  
 

1. City Hall Roof-Preparation of Plans/Specifications- $1,500  
 

Mr. Barnett reviewed the request for $1,500 to prepare specifications for City Hall Roof repair. He noted this is 
for the roof on the old section of City Hall.                 .    
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $1,500 
for engineering costs to prepare specifications for Option A and Option B to restore 
the 1990 Roof Section of City Hall.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 

2. Civic Center Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System  -  $2,859   
 
It was discussed that renovations and upgrades are needed on the kitchen hood fire suppression system at the 
Civic Center.  Ms. Thigpen noted there was a recall on the current system so parts cannot be ordered for it.  
Minutes from the Building & Properties Committee showed discussion that this part of the kitchen would be shut 
down at the next inspection if the hood was not upgraded.  Ms. Thigpen recommended the lowest bid of $2,859 
from Hiller Systems Inc be accepted.  
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $2,859 
for renovations and upgrades needed to the Civic Center Hood Suppression System. 
Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 

3.  Legislative Phone Budget – Additional Internet Service from Mediacom - $1,000   
 

22



Finance Minutes - 3-12.doc  3  

Ms. Henson noted that internet service from Mediacom was installed directly to the City Clerk’s office in order to 
obtain greater bandwidth to allow a faster upload of the Council packets.  
 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $1,000 to 
the Legislative phone budget for additional internet service.  Seconded by Mr. 
Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 

4. Recreation – Youth Spring Soccer Program - $9,750  
 
Mr. McKelroy submitted a memo detailing the cost for the new youth spring soccer program.  Mr. McKelroy  
noted that the cost for this program would be $9,750 and that current fees collected total $11,272.50 thus 
offsetting the $9,750 cost of this new program.  
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $9,750 
for the cost of Youth Spring Soccer.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 

5. Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements –apply for AEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant - $74,994 
 

Mr. Johnson discussed drainage issues in this area.  He noted the City may not be awarded this grant but 
monies are available so applying would be proactive.  He noted the AEMA/FEMA Grant is a 25/75 grant, so the 
cost to the City for an estimated $299,972.50 project is minimal at $74,994. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $74,994 
for the City’s 25% match for Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements, contingent 
upon grant approval, and authorizing the Mayor to apply for the Hazardous Mitigation 
Grant for the Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements project.  Seconded by Mr. 
Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 

C.  Sales Tax Holiday 
 

Ms. Gwynn noted this is an annual event that occurs in August right before school begins.  School purchases 
are exempt during this weekend 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution for the 2012 Sales Tax 
Holiday.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 

D.  Request to go out to Bid:  City Hall Roof Repair 
 
Mr. Barnett and Mr. Johnson reviewed the need to make repairs to the old section of the City Hall roof and 
requested Council’s approval for the City to solicit bids for the project. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council allow staff to bid the City Hall Roof Repair.  
Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 

 
E.  Declare City Property Surplus: 
 

1. Police Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers for Vehicles  
 
Ms. Henson reviewed the Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers that the Police Department was requesting be 
donated to another law enforcement agency.  Ms. Henson noted Captain Bell had advised that Daphne 
Police no longer needed these Cages/Dividers but some other law enforcement agencies could use them.         

 
 

23



Finance Minutes - 3-12.doc  4  

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to donate the Prisoner Transport 
Cages/Dividers for Vehicles to another law enforcement agency. Seconded by Mr. 
Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
 

2. The following equipment was presented for surplus: 
 
Dept   Tag/Veh#      Description          Vin# / Serial #                     

Grounds 97 1998 FORD PU F150 1FTZF1765WNA73818 

Parks 109 1999 GMC SIERRA Crew Cab  (Chassis Only) 1GDKC34J4XF025927 

Parks 1262 Bush Hog Tiller 892770 

Street 21 1989 GMC 8 YARD DUMP TRUCK 1GDL7D1E1KV504469 

Street 705 1999 STERLING SC 8000 ST SWEEPER 49H6WFAA1XHF42238 

Grounds 93 1998 FORD PU F150 1FTZF1767WNA73819 

Grounds 97 1998 FORD PU F150 1FTZF1765WNA73818 

Recycling  Baler, International – LD60CCHD 601057 

Recycling  2001 Baler, International – CY48180 201005 

PW  Canon 3200 copier (needs drum)  

PD  Cameras: 35 mm(20)/  Flash(4)/ Lens(4)/ Cases (2)  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such property. Seconded by 
Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 

V. Old Business 
 

 BIDS: 
Mr. Johnson discussed the pending bid awards for Public Works (listed below) and requested the bids be 
awarded due to bids having a limited timeframe for award.  Discussion continued that these bids were 
discussed at the February Finance meeting then tabled to a Council Work Session for further discussion on 
Capital Request.   Ms. Henson noted that generally the bid award letter is not sent out until monies are 
appropriated but an award letter could be sent, if Council awarded the bids, stating the purchase of the 
equipment would be pending the appropriation of funds. 
 

 Bid: 2012-D-ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT    

 Bid: 2012-E-PW/TRUCK: 8-10 YARD DUMP TRUCK    

 Bid: 2012-F-PW/ROLLER COMPACTOR – TOW BEHIND   
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the following 
bids to the following vendors:    

1)  2012-D-ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT - $33,645 to Truck Equipment Sales-   
2)  2012-E-PW/TRUCK: 8-10 YARD DUMP TRUCK  - $85,998 to Empire Truck Sales, LLC  
3)  2012-F-PW/ROLLER COMPACTOR – TOW BEHIND - $20,030 to Thompson Tractor Company 

and for the Award letter to note that all purchases are pending the appropriation of 
funds.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 
 

VI. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, March 5, 2012   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Derek Boulware 
Mayor Bailey Yelding, Jr. 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

 
Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 
Present:   Margaret Thigpen, Frank Barnett, John Lake, Derek Boulware, Bailey Yelding, Jr., 
Richard Johnson. 
 

A.) Minutes from January Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from January 
Meeting.  Approved.   

 
B.)  Civic Center Suppression Hood System – In October 2011 we were advised by Hiller 

Systems, Inc. that our hood suppression system over the stove in the kitchen was 
outdated and would have to be replaced within the next year at the cost of roughly 
$5000.00.  February 23 we were informed that come inspection time in March if the 
hood system is not replaced, it would be red tagged and shut down for use.  Hiller 
Systems, Inc. also informed me that the original quote of $5000.00 was high due to the 
technician pricing a dry system, not a wet system which is what we have.  I have 
received 3 revised quotes:  Hiller - $2859.00; Skelton - $2,900 plus we would have to 
install automatic gas shut off valve; SimplexGrinnell - $4294.25.  Lake asked if system 
was functional and I said yes.  The point was it was out dated and if red tagged this part 
of the kitchen would be shut down.  Boulware made the motion to move this lowest 
bid from Hiller $2859 to Finance Committee.  So moved by all. 
 

C.) City Hall Roof Repairs – Frank presented roof survey.  Lake asked if roof was failing and 
according to Barnett, 2 slight leaks and sealant is starting to peel off cutting down the 
life of the roof.  Barnett recommends the 15 year.  Barnett asking for a motion to go out 
for bid and for $3000 to be appropriated for bid specs to be drawn up.  Motion was 
made by Boulware to go to Finance Committee, So Moved by All. 
 

84



 

 

 

P
ag

e2
 

D.) Booth Property Update – Johnson recapped the current request from Dr. Booth and the 
fact that the question has been raised to legal -  Can the city legally do a property swap 
of such.  Initial response from legal is no, not without the swap providing an economic 
development value to the city.  Jay is still investigating.  Boulware made a motion that 
Jay Ross renders a definitive legal opinion to include an opinion of lease and/or land 
swap and report such opinion at the next Building & Property Meeting in April.  So 
moved by all. 

 
E.) Civic Center & Bayfront Report -  February and March numbers attached as well as 

revenue report.  Open House at the Civic Center March 15th from 5:30-7:30pm.  This is 

an effort to pull in the business community from Mobile and Baldwin Counties to show 

them what we have to offer for their meetings, etc…  Bayfront Open house is April 10th 

from 5:30-7:30Pm.  Ballroom Dance tickets go on sale March 20th and the event is April 

20th.  Bayfront room and insulation projects complete and the leak in the Civic Center 

roof have been repaired. 

F.) No representation from Building inspection but reports for review are attached. 

G.) Library Roof Repairs – Barnett presented a proposal from Garland Com. In regard to the 
rotunda leaks at the library.  A leak test will cost $1000 and will detect exactly where the 
leak is.  Tonja Young, Library Director, has this in her Building Main. Budget.  Lake makes 
motion for Barnett to proceed with leak test using the funds from young’s budget.  So 
moved by all. 

 
 

Barnett reported that the Fire Alarm System/HVAC issue has been taken care of. 
 

Boulware made a motion to adjourn at 6:22PM. So moved by all.   

Note:  Jane Ellis has sent minutes to Finance Committee and Jay Ross for actions. 

  
 

 

85



86



87



88



89



90



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, January 11, 2012 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware            
 

I. CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 

Members Present:   Kelly Reese, Derek Boulware, Ron Scott.    

 

Others Present:  Rebecca Hayes 

  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 

a.  Ordinance 1993-16 & 1993-21 / Regulating the Use of Alcoholic Beverages in the 

City of Daphne 

 

The committee discussed adding a section regarding permitting the consumption of alcohol on city 

property with appropriate permitting.  Also, they want to include coverage of block parties. 

 

The committee will request the City Attorney to search for ordinances within the state that covers these 

issues.  

 

 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 

Councilman Scott said at a future meeting they need to discuss the protocol for electing officers on the 

council. 

 

Councilman Reese said it will be on the next agenda for discussion.  

 

 

V.   ADJOURN 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

91



 

92



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

93



Daphne Public Library Board 
January 6, 2012 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 In Attendance: 
 
Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members Windrila Longmire, 
Andre LaPalme, and Jim Bodman; Friends President Jim Morris. 
 
1) Call to Order: 
 
After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan Blankenhorn called the meeting to order at 
4:09 pm.  
 
2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 
 
The minutes of the December meeting were approved; motion made by Windrila  and seconded by Jim.  
Motion passed. 
 
3) Chairman’s Report/Comments: 
 
Jan stated that speaker Wayne Flynt on December 7

th
 had been a great success. 

 
4) Library Director's Report: 
 
Tonja did not have the December statistical report due to staff illnesses. It will be presented next month.  
She did announce that the Daphne Public Library was shown by countywide statistics to be one of the 
busiest libraries for interlibrary and intra-library loans in Baldwin County!  (see attached) 
 
Tonja discussed upcoming children’s events and the upcoming Lincoln grant events (beginning the 
following morning).  Tonja also announced that the new library website is up, with small adjustments still 
being made through the vendor. 
 
5) Public Participation 
 
Jim Morris announced that the Friends had awarded Adele a $500 scholarship for earning her MLIS, in 
accordance with the scholarships provided last year to Louise and Rhonda. 
 
6) Other Business 
 
None. 
 
7) Adjourned 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Jan at 5:05 pm. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by T. Young, January 31, 2012 

94



Daphne Public Library Board 
February 2, 2012 
Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 In Attendance: 
 
Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Member Andre LaPalme; 
Friends President Jim Morris; Councilman Gus Palumbo. 
 
1) Call to Order: 
 
No quorum was established. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by T. Young, February 29, 2012 

95



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers  January 25, 2012  5:00 p.m. 
 

I. Call to Order 

The regular January 2012, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on January 25, 
2012 and called to order by Chairman Robert Segalla, at 5:00 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 
 Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 

 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  
 Ron Scott, Secretary/Treasurer 

 Lon Johnston 

 Bailey Yelding, Mayor 
  Others Absent:  
 

      Others Present: Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney  

 Rob McElroy – General Manager 

 Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager 
 Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager  

 Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
 Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 

  Lori May-Wilson – Executive Assistant 

 Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
 Doug Bailey - HMR 
 
 Others Absent:   
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
IV. Approval of Minutes        

a. Utilities Board Minutes from January 4, (December), 2012: 
The Chairman inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the January 4, 2012, 

Utilities Board meeting. No corrections were made. 
   

MOTION BY Ron Scott to approve the Minutes for January 4, (December), 2011; Seconded by Fenton 
Jenkins. 
AYE: JENKINS, SCOTT, SEGALLA, YELDING                ABSENT:  ABSTAIN: JOHNSTON   
MOTION CARRIED 

  
 
 

V. Old Business 
A. Items in Abeyance 

1.  Gas Franchise Agreement – No updated information was reported. 

2.  Spanish Fort Sewer Franchise issues – No updated information was reported. 

 
96



MINUTES - 2 

VI. New Business 
A. Resolution 2012-01 – Resolution to Amend and Restate Resolution 2011-01 
Mrs. Logiotatos clarified the necessity for this Resolution to resolve a date timeline discrepancy.  Mr. Speegle stated 
that he was made aware of the issues and advised that this Amendment will resolve the discrepancy. 
 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to approve Resolution 2012-01 – Resolution to Amend and Restate   
Resolution 2011-01;  Seconded by Lon Johnston. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SEGALLA, SCOTT, YELDING           ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:        

         MOTION CARRIED 

 
VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 Mr. Speegle had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 

 Teresa Logiotatos commented that there was nothing financially out of the ordinary for the month of January; 
she updated the Board on the progress of the audit.  She notified the Board of her intention of moving monies 

allocated for Central Services.  She answered various questions from the Board. 

 
IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

a. GM Report 
Rob McElroy informed the Board of his presentation to the Mobile County Probate Court.  Drew Klumpp briefed 

the Board of the upcoming process to address collection issues for the sewer only for apartment complexes.  The 
Board discussed the procedure with Mr. Klumpp and Mr. Speegle.     

 

Operations Report 
Danny Lyndall updated the Board on the status of the Central Services facility.  He also advised of the Stanton 

Road tank maintenance and rehabilitation. 
 

Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report. She commented, however, on 
the Sanitary Sewer Rehab for the Board. 

 
Doug Bailey of HMR gave an updated review of his report for the Board.    

   

X. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  –  None. 

XI. BOARD ACTION –  None. 

XII. BOARD COMMENTS – Mr. Jenkins recommended to the Board to conduct the regular Board meetings every 
other month but continue receiving the Board book every month and, if necessary, holding a conference call 

during the month there is no meeting.  After discussing the proposal, the Board settled on postponing a decision 
until the February, 2012 meeting.   

 

Mayor Yelding complimented Mr. McElroy’s representation at the Mobile Probate Court.    
XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to adjourn the meeting; Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SEGALLA, SCOTT, YELDING           ABSENT:                ABSTAIN:                 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:31 pm.  

97



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

98



99



100



101



102



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

103



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

104



RESOLUTION 2012- 21 
 

A Resolution Authorizing Application for 
State of Alabama Hazardous Mitigation Grant for:  

Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements 
  

WHEREAS,  the State of Alabama Emergency Management Agency has a Hazardous 
Mitigation program through Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) wherein 
eligible municipalities may receive funds for projects which reduce the risk of damage 
and suffering as a result of future natural disasters; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to apply to the State of Alabama for Hazard Mitigation 
Grant funds for the Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements project; and 
 

WHEREAS,  as part of its funding consideration for the project, the State of Alabama 
requires a local commitment of matching funds equivalent to 25% of the project cost; 
and 
 

WHEREAS,  the cost estimate of the Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements 
project is not expected to exceed $299,973 and the City’s match is estimated not to 
exceed $74,994; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the Daphne City Council wishes to proceed with the application for the 
Hazardous Mitigation Grant. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, that: 
 

1-  The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all documents required for           
the Hazardous Mitigation Grant application for the Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage 
Improvements project; and 

 
 2-  $74,994 is hereby appropriated, contingent upon grant approval,   
 from the fund balance of the General Fund as the City’s matching              
           portion of said grant.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ______ day of _________, 2012. 

 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

 
      _____________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 
________________________ 
David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

105



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-22           
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA SALES 

TAX HOLIDAY FOR THE YEAR 2012 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2006-574 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment 

of municipal sales tax during a period commencing at 12:01 a.m. on the first Friday in August of 

each year and ending at twelve midnight the following Sunday under the same terms, conditions 

and definitions as provided for the state sales tax holiday. 

 

  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain 

covered items from the payment of municipal sales tax for the period commencing at 12:01 a.m. 

Friday, August 3, 2012 and ending at twelve midnight Sunday, August 5, 2012 under the same 

terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by Act No. 2006-574 and Alabama Department 

of Revenue Rule 810-6-3-.65. 

 

  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _______ day of  _____________, 2012. 

 

 

    _______________________________ 

    Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

    ________________________________ 

    Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

106



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-23 
 2012-D-ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the ASPHALT 
HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT will exceed this amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the ASPHALT HOTBOX 
RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT  and determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER 
TRAILER UNIT  be awarded to Truck Equipment Sales, Inc; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby  
accept the bid of $33,645 (Demo) / $36,586 (new) (whichever Unit that is available 

upon appropriation of monies) from Truck Equipment Sales, Inc. as specified in  
BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2012-D-ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER 
UNIT.   

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                             , 2012. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

           

 
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

                     

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

107



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-24 
 2012-E-PW/TRUCK: 8-10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the DUMP 
TRUCK: 8-10 YARDS will exceed this amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the DUMP TRUCK: 8-10 YARDS  
and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the DUMP TRUCK: 8-10 YARDS  be 
awarded to Empire Truck Sales, LLC; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby  
accept the bid of $85,998 from Empire Truck Sales, LLC as specified in   
BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2012-E-PW/TRUCK: 8-10 YARD DUMP TRUCK. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                             , 2012. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

           

 
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

                     

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

108



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-25 

2012-F-PW/ROLLER COMPACTOR – TOW BEHIND 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the ROLLER 
COMPACTOR - TOW BEHIND will exceed this amount; and 

 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the ROLLER COMPACTOR - TOW 
BEHIND and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the ROLLER COMPACTOR - TOW 
BEHIND be awarded to Thompson Tractor Company (Caterpillar). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Thompson Tractor Company (Caterpillar) for a cost of $20,030 
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2012-F-PW/ROLLER COMPACTOR - 
TOW BEHIND. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS            day of                       , 2012. 
 

                                                                                                                                     
________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
         

 

      ________________________________ 

                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 
 

109



RESOLUTION 2012 - 26 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING DISPOSITION 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Police Department of the City of Daphne has determined that there are some 
older Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers for Vehicles that are no longer required for public or 
municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, such Police Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers listed below are no longer used in the 
new police vehicles; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Police Department has been made aware that these Prisoner Transport 
Cages/Dividers can be utilized by another law enforcement agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers will be donated  “AS IS” and without warranty 
of any kind, express, or implied, and recipient will release, acquit, and hold the City harmless for 
any and all claims for damages, causes of action, for any purpose; 

 

WHEREAS, the Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers are recommended for disposal; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

 
1- The following property is hereby declared to be surplus:     

 

 PD Prisoner Transport Cages/Dividers for Vehicles 

 
and 

 
2- The Mayor is authorized to direct the disposition of the above listed property to another 

municipality. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2012. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 

110



RESOLUTION 2012 - 27 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Grounds 97 1998 FORD PU F150 1FTZF1765WNA73818 
Parks 109 1999 GMC SIERRA Crew Cab  (Chassis Only) 1GDKC34J4XF025927 

Parks 1262 Bush Hog Tiller 892770 

Street 21 1989 GMC 8 YARD DUMP TRUCK 1GDL7D1E1KV504469 
Street 705 1999 STERLING SC 8000 ST SWEEPER 49H6WFAA1XHF42238 
Grounds 93 1998 FORD PU F150 1FTZF1767WNA73819 
Grounds 97 1998 FORD PU F150 1FTZF1765WNA73818 

Recycling  
2001 Baler, International - CY48180 / 
w/conveyor-LD60CCHD / SN: 601057 201005 

PW  Canon 3200 Copier (needs drum)  

PD  
Cameras: 35 mm (20) / Flash (4) / Lens (4) / 
Cases (2)  

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2012. 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

111



 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO.  2012 -19 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Zoning District Map 

Revision to the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 

meeting held on January 26. 2012, favorably recommended to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

certain amendments to the Zoning District Map approved and adopted by the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance No. 2011-54 and amended by Ordinance No. 2011-73; and 

 

WHEREAS, said amendments are necessary due to various rezoning and annexation 

requests which have been approved since the adoption of Ordinance 2011-54 and Ordinance 2011-

73; and 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed zoning map amendments has been provided to the 

public as required by law through publication and open display at the City  of Daphne Public Library 

and City Hall; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing regarding the proposed Zoning District Map amendments was 

held by the City Council on March 5, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission believe it in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne to amend said Zoning District Map as recommended; 

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

 

The Zoning District Map referenced hereto as Exhibit AA@ shall be the official zoning map of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and shall be further designated in Appendix H of Exhibit AA@ of the 

City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, as set forth in Ordinance No. 2011-54 and its 

amendments. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

Ordinances No. 2011-20 is hereby repealed and any Ordinance(s), parts of Ordinance(s) or 

Resolution(s) conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they 

conflict. 

112



 
ORDINANCE 2012-19                     REVISION TO ZONING MAP                           PAGE   2 

 

SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City of Daphne City Council and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THE  ____ DAY OF _____________________, 2012. 

 

 

______________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                     

_____________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR.,  

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 
 

113



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2012-20 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE RIGHT OF WAYS OF WOODROW LANE 

LOCATED ADJACENT TO INTERSTATE 10 AND WEST OF ALABAMA STATE 

HIGHWAY 181  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, on the 6
th

 day of January, 2012, the State of Alabama, being the owner of 

the real property herein described, did file with the City a letter containing the signature of Lee 

Reach, P.E., an authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, whereby 

the State of Alabama provided its consent to the annexation of said real property into the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to utilize said real property for the 

health, safety, and welfare purposes of roadway maintenance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its regularly 

scheduled meeting of August 25, 2011, forwarded a favorable recommendation to the City 

Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the areas shown in Exhibit “A”; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held on March 5, 2012, 2012, 

by the City Council of the City of Daphne concerning said letter for annexation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determine it is in the public interest 

that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975);  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

NAME: Rights-of-Way of Woodrow Lane located adjacent to Interstate 10 

and west of Alabama State Highway 181. 

 

 

 

 

 

114



 

 
ORDINANCE 2012-20            ANNEXATION ROW WOODROW LANE                     PAGE   2           

 

 

DESCRIPTION:  

Said tract of land lying in Section 27, Township 4 South, Range 2 East, Baldwin County, 

Alabama and containing 12.55 acres, more or less. Being more particularly described as 

beginning at a point which is 250 feet Northwesterly of and at right angles to the centerline of 

project No. I-10-1(19) at station 568+52.44; thence N 0°-26’-24” W, a distance of 80.80 feet:  

thence N 81°-32’-36” E, a distance of 836.24 feet; thence N 84°-08’-45” E, a distance 1101.14 

feet;  thence N 77°-24’-50” E, a distance of 1027.70 feet;  thence N 76°-54’-26” E, a distance of 

486.48 feet;  thence N 86°-01’10” E, a distance of 1127.46 feet;  thence N 63°-39’-11” E, a 

distance of 437.02 feet; thence N 31°- 55’-53.5” E, a distance of 170.17 feet;  thence N 0°-12’-

36” E, a distance of 530.72 feet;  thence N 30°-12’-36” E, a distance of 290.00 feet;  thence S 0°-

12’-36” W, a distance of 160.00 feet;  thence S 30°-12’-36”  W, a distance of 130.00 feet;  

thence S 0°-12’-36” W, a distance of 580.23 feet;  thence S 31° - 55’ - 53.5” W, a distance of 

170.17 feet;  thence S 63° - 39’ - 11” W, a distance of 476.48 feet;  thence S 84°-40’-01” W, a 

distance of 1159.77 feet;  thence S 79°-14’-20” W, a distance of 481.96 feet;  thence S 78°-31’- 

40 W, a distance of 1026.45 feet;  thence S 84°-08’-45” W, a distance of 1101.14 feet;  thence S 

81°-32’-36” W , a distance of  847.51 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

NAME: Strip of real property 50 feet in width and 200 feet in length, to be 

used as a drainage ditch. 

 

DESCRIPTION:  

Said strip of land lying in Section 27, Township 4 South, Range 2 East, and containing 0.230 

acre more or less. Being more particularly described as beginning at a point which is 231.04 feet 

Northwesterly of and at right angles to the centerline of Project No. I-10-1(19) at Station 

581+17; thence S 84°-08’-45” W, a distance of 27.47 feet; thence N 30°-21’-15” W, a distance 

of 200.00 feet; thence N 84°-08’-45” E, a distance of 54.94 feet; thence S 30°-21’-15” E, a 

distance of 200.00 feet; thence S 84°-08’-45” W , a distance of 27.47 feet to the point of 

beginning. 

 

NAME: Strip of real property 50 feet in width and 200 feet in length, to be 

used as a drainage ditch. 

 

DESCRIPTION:  

Said strip of land lying in Section 27, Township 4 South, Range 2 East, and containing 0.230 

acre more or less. Being more particularly described as beginning at a point which is 323.92 feet 

Northwesterly of and at right angles to the centerline of Project No. I-10-1(19) at Station 

596+03.34; thence S 77°-24’-50” W, a distance of 27.96 feet; thence N 14°-01’-40” E, a distance 

of 200.00 feet; thence N 77°-24’-50” E, a distance of 55.92 feet; thence S 14°-01’-40” W, a 

distance of 200.00 feet; thence S 77°-24’-50” W , a distance of 27.96 feet to the point of 

beginning. 

  

115



 

 
ORDINANCE 2012-20            ANNEXATION ROW WOODROW LANE                     PAGE   3           

 

 

NAME: Strip of real property 50 feet in width and 200 feet in length, to be 

used as a drainage ditch. 

 

DESCRIPTION:  

Said strip of land lying in Section 27, Township 4 South, Range 2 East, and containing 0.230 

acre more or less. Being more particularly described as beginning at a point which is 332.06 feet 

Northwesterly of and at right angles to the centerline of Project No. I-10-1(19) at Station 

597+52.27; thence S 77°-24’-50” W, a distance of 26.16 feet; thence N 4°-31’-40” E, a distance 

of 200.00 feet; thence N 77°-24’-50” E, a distance of 52.32 feet; thence S 4°-31’-40” W, a 

distance of 200.00 feet; thence S 77°-24’-50” W , a distance of 26.16 feet to the point of 

beginning. 

 

NAME: Strip of real property 50 feet in width and 200 feet in length, to be 

used as a drainage ditch. 

 

DESCRIPTION:  

Said strip of land lying in Section 27, Township 4 South, Range 2 East, and containing 0.230 

acre more or less. Being more particularly described as beginning at a point which is 356.51 feet 

Northwesterly of and at right angles to the centerline of Project No. I-10-1(19) at Station 

602+59.27; thence S 76°-54’-26” W, a distance of 25.93 feet; thence N 2°-14’-29” E, a distance 

of 200.00 feet; thence N 76°-54’-26” E, a distance of 51.86 feet; thence S 2°-14’-29” W, a 

distance of 200.00 feet; thence S 76°-54’-26” W , a distance of 25.93 feet to the point of 

beginning. 

 

 Being contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

 

 

 

116



 

 
ORDINANCE 2012-20            ANNEXATION ROW WOODROW LANE                     PAGE   4           

 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final  

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2012. 

 

 

 

 

        

 

_______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       BAILEY YELDING, Jr., 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

117



118



119



120



121



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2012-21 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE IN ALL 

INSTANCES FOR MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA that the Order Procedure in All Instances for Meetings of the City Council 

shall be as follows: 

 

SECTION I: 

 

 That the Rules of Procedure herein contained shall govern the liberations and 

meetings of all of the Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II: 

 

 That the regular meetings of the City Council shall be held on the first and third 

Mondays of each month, which meeting shall convene at 6:30 p.m. at the City Hall 

Council Chamber and all meetings, regular and special, shall be opened to the public, 

except when Council meets in executive session as authorized by State law.  The 

regularly scheduled work session will be held on the Monday between the first and 

second council meeting at 6:30 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers.  Items for the 

agenda must be turned in by 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday before the work session. 

 

SECTION III: 

 

 That special meetings may be held at the call of the presiding officer by serving 

notice on each member of the Council not less than twenty-four hours before the time set 

for such special called meeting.  All special meetings may be held as provided by Section 

11-43-50 Code of Alabama, 1975 (as amended).  Furthermore, any two (2) Council 

members shall have the right to call for a special meeting.  Notice of all special meetings 

shall be posted on a bulletin board and appropriate customary media notified, and is 

accessible to the public twenty-four hours prior to such scheduled meeting. 

 

SECTION IV: 

 

 A Quorum shall be determined as provided by Section 11-43-40, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, (as amended). 

 

 

 

122



ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   2 

 

           

SECTION V: 

 

 That the order of business of each council meeting shall be as follows: 

 

 1. Call to Order 

 

 2. Roll Call/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

 

 4. Reports of Standing Committees: 

   Finance Committee 

   Building/Property Committee 

   Planning/Zoning Code Enforcement Committee 

   Public Safety/Ordinance Committee 

   Public Works/Solid Waste Committee 

 

 5. Reports of Special Boards and Commissions 

   Board of Zoning Adjustment 

   Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

   Industrial Development Board 

   Library Board 

   Planning Commission 

   Recreation Board 

   Utility Board 

 

 6. Report of Officers: 

   a. Mayors Report 

   b. City Attorney Report 

   c. Department Heads Report 

 

 7. Public Participation 

 

 8. Resolution Ordinances and Other Business 

  

 9. Council Comments 

 

 10. Adjournment 

 

 

 
 

123



ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   3 

 

 

SECTION VI: 

 

 That any item including all background material to be placed on agenda must be 

turned in by 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday before the council meeting to the City Clerk 

subject to the review of the Council President.  The council packet will be sent to the full 

City Council by 12:00 p.m. Friday before the City Council Meeting. 

 

SECTION VII: 

 

 That no member shall speak more than twice on the same subject without 

permission of the presiding officer, and after all other council members have had the 

opportunity to speak. 

 

SECTION VIII: 

 

 That no individual who is not a member of the City Council or the Mayor shall be 

allowed to address the same while in session without permission of the presiding officer 

and for not more than three (3) minutes, unless approved by the presiding officer.  No 

person shall be allowed to address the Council on any matter which shall be the subject of 

a public hearing scheduled by the Council until the meeting under which the public 

hearing on that matter is scheduled to be heard.  An individual wishing to speak to the 

council will permission of the Council President will be allowed 5 minutes.  The 

individual must provide in writing a synopsis of the topic to be discussed.  This synopsis 

is to be delivered to the City Clerk by the Wednesday before the council meeting at 5:00 

p.m. 

 

SECTION IX: 

 

 That those motions to reconsider must be made by a council member who voted 

with the majority at the same or next succeeding meeting of the Council. 

 

SECTION X: 

 

 That whenever it shall be required by one or more members the "ayes" and the 

"nays" shall be recorded and any member may cal for a division on any question. 

 

SECTION XI: 

 

 That all questions of order shall be decided by the presiding officer of the Council 

with the right of appeal to the Council. 

Ordinance             
 

124



ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   4 

 

 

SECTION XII: 
 

 That the presiding officer of the Council may, at his or her discretion, call any 

members to take the chair to allow him or her to address the Council or make a motion or 

discuss ay other matter at issue. 

 

SECTION XIII: 

 

 That motions to lay any matter on the table shall be first in order, and on all 

questions, the last amendment, the most distant day, and the largest sum shall be first put. 

 

SECTION XVI: 

 

 That Council may meet in executive session only for purposes authorized by State 

law.  When a council person makes a motion for executive session for an enumerated 

purpose, the presiding officer shall put the motion to vote.  If the majority of the council 

shall vote in favor of the Motion for executive session the body shall then move into 

executive session for discussion of the matter for which executive session was called.  No 

action may be taken in an executive session.  When the discussion has been completed, 

the council shall resume its deliberations in public. 

 

SECTION XV: 

 

 That a motion for adjournment shall always be in order. 

 

SECTION XVI: 

 

 That the rules of the Council may be amended in the same manner as any other 

ordinance of general or permanent nature. 

 

SECTION XVII: 

 

 That the rules of the Council may be temporarily suspended by unanimous vote of 

all members present. 

 

SECTION XVIII: 

 

 That the chair of each respective committee, or the council member acting for him 

or her, shall submit and make report to the Council when so requested by the presiding 

officer or any member of the Council. 

Ordinance             

125



 
ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   5 

 

 

SECTION XIX: 

 

 That all ordinances, resolutions or propositions submitted to Council which 

require the expenditure of money will lie over until the next Council meeting; provided 

that such ordinance, resolution or propositions may be considered earlier by unanimous 

consent of the Council members present at such meeting by roll call vote and provided 

further that this rule shall not apply to the current expenses of, or contracts previously 

made with, or regular salaries of officers, or wages of employees of the City. 

 

SECTION XX: 

 

 That all motions, resolutions, ordinances or other business required to be in 

writing shall be prepared and supplied to all Council members by twelve noon one full 

city work day before the Council meeting in which it is to be presented.  (e.g. if City 

offices are not open, the Friday before the Monday council meeting, then the writings and 

documentation shall be supplied to each city council member by placing same in each 

member's mailbox at City Hall by noon Thursday.) 

 

a. It is desired that information be supplied to the City Clerk in time to be made part 

 of the agenda packet.  

 

b. When a work session is called or scheduled between two council meetings, all 

 motions, resolutions, ordinances or other business required to be in writing shall 

 be presented in substantially the same form as that which is required for 

 presentation at council meeting. 

 

c. Notwithstanding Sections a. and b., hereinabove, in the situation of an actual 

 emergency sections a. and b., hereinabove, shall not apply.  For purposes herein an 

 actual emergency exist from failure to act will result in an immediate and 

 irrefutable harm to the City or any of its citizens and or otherwise it was physically 

 impossible to comply with notice requirements set forth herein as the same may 

 be determined by the presiding officer of the Council. 

 

SECTION XXI: 

 

 That the City Clerk, City Engineer, City Attorney, Chief of Police and Fire Chief 

and such other officers and employees shall, when requested, attend all meetings of the 

City Council, and shall otherwise remain in the Council Chamber for such length of time 

as the Council, presiding officer or Mayor may direct. 

 

126



         
ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   6 

 

 

SECTION XXII: 

 

 That the City Council may have the ability to have a discussion on any motion. 

 

SECTION XXIII: 

 

 That Roberts' Rules of Order be and is hereby adopted as the rules of procedure 

for this Council in those situations which cannot be resolved by the rules set forth in this 

Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XXIV: 

 

 The City Council will set all public hearings by a majority vote.  At all public 

hearings after the initial presentation all questions and comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes per speaker. 

 

SECTION XXV: 

 

 All motions that come from committees must still be seconded. 

 

SECTION XXVI: 

 

 That Ordinance 2009-21 be and is hereby repealed in its entirety and that other 

ordinance(s), parts of ordinance(s) or resolutions(s) conflicting with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

 

SECTION XXVII: 

 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence are part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not effect or impair the remainder of 

this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and act each provision section, 

paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION XXVIII: 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced from and after approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne upon publication required by law. 

 

 

127



 

 
ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   7 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the ____ day of _______________, 

2012. 

 

 

  CITY OF DAPHNE, AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE 

       COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

       MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

128



ORDINANCE 2012 - 22 
 
 

City Hall Roof Repairs Appropriation 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Maintenance department has been monitoring the roof 
condition in the old section of the City Hall building, and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at the City Hall to 
maintain and protect the existing roof structure and building. 
 
WHEREAS, repair estimates have shown that plans are needed for this project to 
be bid, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $1,500 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget to prepare plans for 
the repair and maintenance of the City Hall Roof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

129



ORDINANCE 2012-23  
 
 

Civic Center Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Civic Center’s current Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System is 
outdated and the unit has been recalled;   
 
WHEREAS, the Civic Center was notified that if the unit was not replaced before 
the next inspection time this part of the kitchen would be shut down. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $2,859 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for a new Kitchen 
Hood Fire Suppression System for the Civic Center. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________    , 2012. 
        
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

130



ORDINANCE 2012 -24 
 
 

Legislative Phone/Internet Budget Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for additional 
internet connection through Mediacom for the City Clerk’s office; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional internet band width was required for the City Clerk to upload 
the Council packet to the City’s website and to e-mail the packet out.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $1,000 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for additional internet 
services from Mediacom for the City Clerk’s office. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

131



ORDINANCE 2012 - 25 
 
 

Youth Spring Soccer Program Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for the Youth 
Spring Soccer Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Recreation Department provides several athletic programs for the 
community and the interest in a Spring Soccer program has increased; and 
 
WHEREAS, the number of participants currently signed up for the Spring Soccer 
Program is 236 and fees will be collected from these participants to later offset the 
cost.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $9,750 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget to fund the Spring 
Soccer Program. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____ day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

132


	AGENDA - March 19.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - March 5.pdf
	Council Work Session Minutes - March 12.pdf
	Backup to WS Minutes.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes - 3-12.pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Building & Property Minutes -  March 2012.pdf
	Backup to Building & Property Minutes.pdf
	Ordinance Committee Minutes - March 14.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - January.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - FEBRUARY.pdf
	Utility Board Minutes - APPROVED Jan 2012.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Parade Permit.pdf
	Voting Delegate.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2012-21 - RES - Santa Rosa Ave Drainage Improvements-HzdMit-AEMA-FEMA-2012.pdf
	2012-22 - RES - SALES TAX Holiday 2012.pdf
	2012-23 - RES - Asphalt hotbox reclaimer trailer unit-2012.pdf
	2012-24 - RES - Truck- Dump Tk - 8-10 Yards-2012.pdf
	2012-25 - RES - Roller Compactor-2012.pdf
	2012-26 - RES - Donation OF PROPERTY.pdf
	2012-27 - RES - GOVDEALS COM               .pdf
	2012-19 - ORD - ZoningOrdinanceAmend1 1.pdf
	2012-20 - ORD - WoodrowLaneROWAnnex1 1.pdf
	Backup to 2012-20 - ORD.pdf
	2012-21 - ORD - COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE.pdf
	2012-22 - ORD - City Hall Roof Repair.pdf
	2012-23 - ORD - Civic Center Hood Suppression System.pdf
	2012-24 - ORD - Legislative Phone Budget-Mediacom Internet.pdf
	2012-25 - ORD - Soccer - Youth Spring Soccer Program.pdf

